

# CareMatch Portal: User Guide for Providers - Version 3.1

# 1 CONTENT PAGE

# Contents

1	Co	ntent Page	2
2		oduction	
3		plying for a contract	
	3.1	Application process For New Providers	
	3.2	Raising Questions about the Application Process	13
	3.3	Procurement Correspondences	
	3.4	Login	
	3.5	User account locked/Password forgotten	18
4	Das	shboard	
	4.1	Status Bar	20
	4.2	Recent Messages	
	4.3	Open Referrals	
	4.4	Sidebar	
	4.5	My Account	23
5	Ref	ferrals	25
	5.1	What are Referrals?	
	5.2	How do I access my referrals?	
	5.3	I have a question about a Referral	28
	5.4	View History	
	5.5	Emergency Placements	30
6	Off	ers	31
	6.1	How do I respond to a referral?	26
	6.2	Making an Offer	
	6.3	Withdrawing an offer or changing decision to decline referral	27
	6.4	How do I view my offers?	31
7	Sei	rvice Agreements	32
	7.1	What are Service Agreements?	
	7.2	How do I access my Service Agreements?	32
	7.3	How do I accept a service agreement?	32
	7.4	How do i print my Service Agreement?	33
8	My	Providers and Users	34
	8.1	How do I view my Providers?	34
	8.2	How do I add a new Provider and apply for a contract?	35
	8.2 8.3	How do I apply for a new contract for one of my Approved Providers?	36
			36
	8.3	How do I apply for a new contract for one of my Approved Providers? How do I save my Registration to complete later? How do I delete a Registration?	36 37 39
	8.3 8.4 8.5 8.6	How do I apply for a new contract for one of my Approved Providers? How do I save my Registration to complete later? How do I delete a Registration? How do I delete a Provider?	36 37 39 40
	8.3 8.4 8.5 8.6 8.7	How do I apply for a new contract for one of my Approved Providers? How do I save my Registration to complete later? How do I delete a Registration? How do I edit a Provider? How do I manage User Accounts (including adding new Users)?	36 37 39 40 41
9	8.3 8.4 8.5 8.6 8.7 8.8	How do I apply for a new contract for one of my Approved Providers? How do I save my Registration to complete later? How do I delete a Registration? How do I delete a Provider?	36 37 39 40 41 42

# 2 INTRODUCTION

We are pleased to introduce Birmingham City Council's social care commissioning system – CareMatch Portal. The system was developed based on feedback from a range of stakeholders. This user guide will document and walk through the entire CareMatch Portal system from a provider's perspective.

Information on how to register/log in to the system is included, as well as the dashboard and main functionality. Throughout the guide, tips and useful information will be given to help users use the system to its full capacity.

# **3 APPLYING FOR A CONTRACT**

There are several routes that can be used to apply for a contract. Which route you should use, depends on whether you already have a CareMatch Portal User account, and whether one of your services has previously been awarded a contract. Please read the guidance below carefully, so that you proceed by the correct route.

#### CareMatch Portal and Care Quality Commission (cqc.org.uk)

You should be aware that the language used in CareMatch Portal differs from that used by CQC. Your registration as the owner of a company or organisation running the service is described by CQC as a 'Provider' registration. On CareMatch Portal, this is described as your 'Owner' registration. The registration of the specific service you want to apply for a contract for on CareMatch Portal is described by CQC as a 'Location' registration. On CareMatch Portal, this is described as your 'Provider' registration.

For CQC registered services, entering the Provider ID and the Location ID will enable CareMatch Portal to populate the form from data held by CQC.

#### CareMatch Portal uses CQC registration information as follows:

- Each CQC Provider ID creates a separate CareMatch Portal Owner account (so some organisations may need more than one Owner account)
- Having created an Owner account with a CQC Provider ID, you then apply for a contract by entering the CQC Location ID for the particular service (CareMatch Portal then identifies this CQC location as a 'Provider')
- For services based outside England (in Wales, Scotland & Northern Ireland) there is the facility to make a 'Non-CQC' application. Services based in England, with a CQC Location ID, <u>should not use this route.</u>
- If the company or organisation owning your service, and the service itself, are both
  registered in Wales, Scotland or Northern Ireland, the Owner and Provider details
  will need to be completed manually, following the guidance provided. You should enter
  the Owner & Provider details as they are registered with the appropriate regulator (see
  below)

Home | Care Inspectorate Wales

Welcome to the Care Inspectorate (Scotland)

Regulation and Quality Improvement Authority - Regulation and Quality Improvement Authority – Health & Social Care Services Northern Ireland (rgia.org.uk)

• If the company or organisation owning your service is registered with CQC but the service itself is registered in Wales, Scotland or Northern Ireland, or vice versa, please contact <u>marketintelligence@birmingham.gov.uk</u> for advice before starting your application.

# Selecting the correct route to apply for a contract

- a) If your company or organisation has never previously entered your Owner details (CQC Provider ID) into CareMatch Portal, you should follow the guidance in Section 3.1 below to make your contract application
- b) If your company or organisation has previously entered your Owner details (CQC Provider ID) into CareMatch Portal, but has never been awarded a contract as a result, you must log into CareMatch Portal using the email address and password for the previously created User account. Once logged in, please follow the guidance in Section 3.1 below to make your contract application. If you don't know the details of a previously created User account, please email <u>marketintelligence@birmingham.gov.uk</u> for assistance quoting the CQC Provider ID.
- c) If your company or organisation has previously entered your Owner details (CQC Provider ID) into CareMatch Portal, and has been awarded a contract via CareMatch Portal for one of your Providers (CQC Locations), and you want to apply for a new contract for the same Provider, log in to CareMatch Portal and follow the steps in Section 8.3. If you have more than one User account, please read Section 8.7 for information on which User account you should use to log in.
- d) If your company or organisation has previously entered your Owner details (CQC Provider ID) into CareMatch Portal, and has been awarded a contract for one of your Providers (CQC location IDs), and you want to apply for a contract for a different Provider (CQC location) linked to the same Owner (CQC Provider ID) registration, but that has not previously been awarded a contract, please log into CareMatch Portal and follow the steps in Section 8.2. If you have more than one User account, please read Section 8.7 for information on which User account you should use to log in.

# Please Note

If you are applying for a contract by following the steps in paragraphs **a**) or **b**) above, you will have access to the Contracts Information page during the course of your application. If you are following the steps in paragraphs **c**) or **d**) above, and you want to access information about the contract, please go to the CareMatch Portal log in page and click on 'New Provider – Register here'. Although you are not a new provider, this will take you to the Contract Information page, where you can access contract information by clicking the relevant contract button. **Do not click the 'New Owner (CQC provider) Register here' button on this page**, which is the route for new providers only.

#### **3.1 REGISTRATION PROCESS FOR NEW PROVIDERS**

Upon opening the CareMatch provider website, you will be presented with a welcome screen (see Figure 3.1.1).



Figure 3.1.1: The CareMatch Login/Registration Screen

Here, as a new provider you will be able to create an account, or login to the system as an existing provider to see your dashboard (Dashboard details will be discussed later in this document).

To register for a new account, you must click on the 'New Provider, Register Here' button, as highlighted in red (see Figure 3.1.1). Upon clicking on the button, you will be presented with an information page:



Figure 3.1.2: The Registration Information page

This is the first step in a 7-stage application process. This first step consists of information to review before deciding whether to apply, such as details of Flexible Contracting Arrangements or Framework Agreements that are currently open for tenders. Once done, you may click on the "New Owner" button arrowed in red (see Figure 3.1.2) to move on to the next stage.

1 DeCORMATION	2 OWNER DETAILS	3 OWNER APPLICATION	4 5 PROVIDER CONTRACTS PROVIDER D	ETAILS PROVIDER APPLICATION	7 SUBMITTED APPLICATION
STEP 2: OWNER DETAILS					
Welcome to CareMatch, the system to match quality ca	re for adults across Birmingham.				
To register your interest in providing care services to ac	dults within Birmingham, please complete the fo	llowing details			
Are you a Care Quality Commissio	on registered provider? 🖲 💿 Yes 💿 No				
CQC Provider ID Search (			60		
			_		
Name of Provider*: 0			CQC ID		
Website*:			Contact Number*		
Address Line 1: 0			County		
Address Line 2:			Region		
Town/City:			Postal Code		
		Please tick to confirm these Provide	r details are correct. O		
USER REGISTRATION					
First Name*:			Sumame*		
Contact Number*:			Role*	Owner	
Email*: O			Confirm Email*		
Password*: 0			Confirm Password*:		
		Tip: F	ields marked with * are required		
		BA	CK NEXT		

# Step 2 – Owner Details

Figure 3.1.3 The Owner Details Page

To return to an application, having saved it to complete at a later time, go to Section 8.4

The second stage of the application process consists of entering your owner (CQC provider) details. If you are a Care Quality Commission regulated provider, please check "Yes" on the relevant question (see Figure 3.1.3) and then enter your CQC Provider ID into the search bar and click 'Go' (for information on where to find your CQC Provider ID, hover over the "i" icon next to the question). Upon entering your CQC Provider ID, the owner (CQC provider) details will automatically be filled within the form (Please note, any fields indicated with an asterisk, are required fields, and must be filled in to continue to the next stage). If the CQC Provider Details are incorrect, this needs to be amended through the CQC, as the system pulls through details that have been registered on their website.

If you get a message that your CQC Provider ID has already been registered in CareMatch Portal, you need to log in with the user account that you (or someone else in your organisation) has already set up for that Provider ID. If you don't know the email that was used in the user account, please email <u>marketintelligence@birmingham.gov.uk</u> for assistance quoting CQC Provider ID.

However, if you are not a CQC registered provider, due to your being located outside of England, please check "No" on the relevant question (see Figure 3.1.3 - 1) and the "CQC Provider ID Search" will be replaced with two other fields (see Figure 3.1.4).

on-CQC Regulator*:	Non-CQC Regulator	Non-CQC Registration ID":
	Non-CQC Regulator	
	Care Inspectorate (Scotland)	
	Care Inspectorate (Wales)	
	Regulation and Quality Improvement Authority (Northern Ireland)	

Figure 3.1.4 Fields for Non-CQC registered providers in the Company Registration Page

If the company or organisation owning your service, and the service itself, are both registered in Wales, Scotland or Northern Ireland, you can proceed to manually enter the mandatory Owner & Provider details as they are registered with the appropriate regulator (see below)

Home | Care Inspectorate Wales

Welcome to the Care Inspectorate (Scotland)

Regulation and Quality Improvement Authority - Regulation and Quality Improvement Authority – Health & Social Care Services Northern Ireland (rqia.org.uk)

If the company or organisation owning your service is registered with CQC but the service itself is registered in Wales, Scotland or Northern Ireland, please contact <u>marketintelligence@birmingham.gov.uk</u> for advice before starting your application.

After all the information regarding the provider has been pulled through and you have verified it is correct; check the "please tick to confirm the provider details are correct" tick box.

#### **Creating Your User Account**

Once done, you will need to enter details regarding yourself (or the person you wish to manage your care match provider profile as well as your provider locations). All the fields in this user registration section are required. The email and password you enter here will create your User Account and will be your log in details, so do not forget them.

For validation and security purposes, if your email and password do not match in the confirm email or password box, a warning message will be displayed, and you will need to retype them until they match. Once completed, click on the "Next" button (see Figure 3.1.3) to continue onto the next page. Doing so, will cause a window to appear with the terms and conditions (see Figure 3.1.4).

TERMS AND CONDITIONS	×
CareMatch is the system by which providers wishing to provide home support, supported living, residenti care (including nursing) services to Birmingham citizens apply to join the Flexible Contracting Arrangement or Framework Agreement necessary to do so. Details of Flexible Contracting Arrangements or Framework Agreements that are open for tenders are available here.	nt
By registering your company details and applying for a location to signed up to an open tender you are agreeing to carry out service provision in accordance with the Terms & Conditions as stated in the Flexible Contracting Arrangement or Framework Agreement you are applying for, if your application is successful.	
CANCEL REGIST	R

Figure 3.1.4 Terms and Conditions

Next, you will be presented with a Terms and Conditions pop-up. Here you must accept the Terms and Conditions to register for an account (see Figure 3.1.4 -1). To agree and continue you may click on the register button (see Figure 3.1.4 - 2).

# Step 3 – Owner Application

Step 3 of the application process is the Owner Application (see Figure 3.1.4 a). Here there are several sections that must be completed. As you can see, for this application, there are four sections, each with its own progress bar. Each section contains different questions which you will need to complete. Some of these are mandatory. Each section follows the same layout and has the same features. One feature that is common throughout the application sections is shown on this page. The information icon symbol next to the 'Insurance documents' question section is known as a tool tip. Clicking on this information icon will show a message with some guidance.

n Dashboard	OWNER APPLICATION
Questions	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 INFORMATION OWNER DETAILS OWNER APPLICATION PROVIDER PROVIDER APPLICATION APPLICATION APPLICATION APPLICATION
	STEP 3: OWNER APPLICATION In order to process and approve your registration, we need you to complete the following application. The application has been broken down into sections, and you can see your progress on each section below.
	O INSURANCE DOCUMENTS     O%     START  INSURANCE DOCUMENTS - NURSING HOMES     O%     START  GENERAL COMPANY INFORMATION     O%     START
	PERSONS OF SIGNIFICANT CONTROL (PSC) 0% START
City Council city Council copyRight Pengower Ltd 2018.	BACK NEXT

Figure 3.1.4a Owner Application

An example of how the question sections are completed is shown below for the 'Insurance Documents' section.

By clicking 'Start' next to the 'Insurance Documents' section (see Figure 3.1.4a) the user can open the question section where they will see all the questions relating to this section. The questions can be of various types.

INSURANCE DOCUMENTS The questions below are for Company Application. Please answer the questions below. Questions marked with * are mandatory.  1. Please confirm Employers Liability (including volunteers) Insurance - to be as a minimum in accordance with statutory legislation and upload your certificate here. *  • Yes • No Files uploaded: Select Select files to upload (jpeg. jpg. pngdoc, .docx, .pdf, .pub, .csv, .xlsx, .xls) Further further
Please answer the questions below. Questions marked with * are mandatory.          1. Please confirm Employers Liability (including volunteers) Insurance - to be as a minimum in accordance with statutory legislation and upload your certificate here. * <ul> <li>Yes</li> <li>No</li> </ul> Files uploaded:
<ol> <li>Please confirm Employers Liability (including volunteers) Insurance - to be as a minimum in accordance with statutory legislation and upload your certificate here. *         <ul> <li>Yes</li> <li>No</li> </ul> </li> <li>Files uploaded:         <ul> <li>Select</li> <li>Select files to upload (.jpegjpgpngdoc, .docx, .pdf, .pub, .csv, .xlsx, .xls)</li> </ul> </li> </ol>
<ul> <li>Yes</li> <li>No</li> <li>Files uploaded:         <ul> <li>Select</li> </ul> </li> <li>Select files to upload (.jpeg, .jpg, .png, .doc, .docx, .pdf, .pub, .csv, .xlsx, .xls)</li> </ul>
Files uploaded: Select Select files to upload (.jpeg, .jpg, .png, .doc, .docx, .pdf, .pub, .csv, .xlsx, .xls)
select Select files to upload (.jpegjpgpngdoc, .docx, .pdf, .pub, .csv, .xlsx, .xls)
Select files to upload (.jpegjpg, .doc, .docx, .pdf, .pub, .csv, .xlsx, .xls)
Expiry Date:
29/09/2018
2. Please Confirm Public Liability Insurance (including loss or damage to service user's personal effects) - Minimum £10m and upload your insurance certificate here. *
● Yes ◎ No
Files uploaded:
Select Select files to upload (,jpeg, .jpg, .png, .doc, .docx, .pdf, .pub, .csv, .xlsx, .xls)
File Required
Expiry Date:
29/09/2018
BACK SAVE

Figure 3.1.5 Application Summary – Owner Application

As you can see, this section only has two questions. Both the questions are mandatory which is shown by the red asterisk. Both questions require the upload of a file. To do this, all the user needs to do, is click 'Select' and choose a file to upload. Doing this will show the file and a green/red icon to represent the status of the file upload (green means successful) as shown below:

1. Please confirm Employers Liability (including volunteers) Insurance - to be as a minimum in accordance with statutory legislation and upload your certificate here. *
Yes O No
Top20Image_Left.png x Remove Select
Select files to upload (jpeg, jpg, .png, .doc, .docx, .pdf, .pub, .csv, .xlsx, .xls)
Expiry Date:
29/09/2018

An expiry date must be entered when a file is uploaded.

When both questions have been answered and files uploaded successfully, click save. Doing so, will take you back to the owner application summary. You will now see that the progress bar for the first question section has gone to 100%. At this point, you have finished one whole question section and can log out and return later as each section can be saved, even if it is only partly completed.

If you do miss a question by accident, the percentage and the bar would not reach 100%, which would inform you a mandatory question was missed. Any non-mandatory questions can be left empty which

will not stop the bar from reaching 100%. Below is a screenshot of what the page looks like when all question sections have been completed:



Once all question sections have been answered and all the progress bars are at 100%, as above, the user needs to click 'Review' and review their answers. Clicking the 'Review' button before the progress bars are at 100% will cause an error message to be shown, informing users which question sections have not yet been completed. In the review (see Figure 3.1.6 Questions Section) the user can see all their answers for each question section, which have been separated into tabs. Clicking "Edit response" will take the user back to that question section, to that exact question, for them to edit their response and resave the page. After you have reviewed the questions and are happy with your responses, click "Next" on the review page.

surance Documents	Insurance Documents - Nursing Homes	General Company Information	Persons of Significant Control (PSC)
			Documents
1. Please confirm *	n Employers Liability (including volun	teers) Insurance - to be as a	minimum in accordance with statutory legislation and upload your certificate her
Yes O No			
Files Uploaded: Test	1.30.doc;		
Edit Response			
2. Please Confirn here. * Yes O No Files Uploaded: Test		loss or damage to service u	ser's personal effects) - Minimum £10m and upload your insurance certificate
Edit Response			

Figure 3.1.6 Question Sections Review

# Step 4 – Provider Contracts

Step 4 of the application process is selecting the contract that the provider (CQC location) you are registering in Step 5 would like to deliver. Figure 3.1.7 shows the contracts available, based on the regulated activities the Owner is registered to deliver with CQC. You need to check that the particular CQC location concerned can deliver the regulated activities required by the contract.

Dashboard	PROVIDER CONTRACTS
Questions	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 INFORMATION OWNER DETAILS OWNER APPLICATION PROVIDER CONTRACTS PROVIDER DETAILS PROVIDER APPLICATION APPLICATION APPLICATION
	STEP 4: PROVIDER CONTRACTS Please select Specialisms from below
	Care Homes 2018
	BACK NEXT
© COPYRIGHT PENGOWER LTD 2018. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED	

Figure 3.1.7 Contract Selection

Once you have selected the contract, you will be asked to select what service specialisms (client types) you would like to deliver under the contract. Only those service specialisms that are registered with CQC will be accepted. If there are elements that you wish to include, that are not currently on the CQC location registration, please contact CQC to have them added to the registration details. Click on the next button to continue to the next stage of the application process (see Figure 3.1.7).

#### Step 5 – Provider Details

Step 5 in the application process is the Provider Details. Here, you can register a provider (CQC location) for your owner (CQC provider). If the provider is regulated by the Care Quality Commission, then you may simply enter the CQC Location ID in the relevant field and press 'Go' to automatically fill in the first section of the form (See Figure 3.1.8). The CQC location ID you enter must be a location ID connected with the CQC provider ID you entered in step 2, otherwise an error message will be displayed, and you will not be able to register the location.

n Dashboard	PROVIDER DET	AILS				
Questions	1 Deformation	2 OWNER DETAILS		4 5 PROVIDER CONTRACTS PROVIDER DET	6 ALS PROVIDER APPLICATION	SUBMITTED APPLICATION
	STEP 5: PROVIDER DETAILS To register details of your service(s, please complete	te the following location details.				
	Are you a Care Quality Commission regi	stered location? O 🗢 Yes 🔍 No				
	CQC Location ID Search: ()			GO		
	Location Name:			Trading Name: 🛛		
	Address Line 1:			County:		
	Address Line 2:			Region:		
	Town/City:			Postal Code:		
	Website:					
	Name of Registered Manager/Acting Manager:	[		Date of Registration/Date of Appointment:	mm/dd/yyyy	
	CQC Rating: 0	Good	~	If you do not hold a CQC rating, please confirm why this is the case:		
	Name of Person Submitting Bid:			Role of Person Submitting Bid:	Owner	~
	Email of Person Submitting Bid:			Confirm Email of Person Submitting Bid:		
	Contact Number of Bid Submitter:					
	Email Address for Referrals: 0			Confirm Email Address for Referrals: ()		
Birmingham			ВАСК	NEXT		

Figure 3.1.8 Provider Registration

If the CQC Location details are incorrect, this needs to be amended through CQC as the system pulls through details that have been registered on their website.

If the provider is not based in England, you will be able to select the relevant Non-CQC regulator and enter the registration ID with that regulator (see Figure 3.1.9) as well as the provider details (in the same way you did when entering the owner details).

Non-CQC Regulator*:	Non-CQC Regulator	Non-CQC Registration ID*:	
	Non-CQC Regulator Care Inspectorate (Scotland)		
	Care Inspectorate (Wales) Regulation and Quality Improvement Authority (Northern Ireland)	Trading Name: 🖲	

Figure 3.1.9 Non-CQC Regulated Fields

After completing the required fields, you may click on the "Next" button to continue to the next stage (see Figure 3.1.8).

To return to an application, having saved it to complete at a later time, go to Section 8.4

n Darboard	PROVIDER APPLICATION
Question:	STEP 6: PROVIDER APPLICATION In order to process and approve your registration, we need you to complete the following application. The application has been broken down into sections; and you can see your progress on each section below.
	PAYMENT INFORMATION 0% START
	GROUNDS FOR MANDATORY EXCLUSION (REGULATION 57 (1) AND (2) 0% START
	GROUNDS FOR MANDATORY EXClusion REGULATION 57 (3) 0% START
	GROUNDS FOR DISCRETIONARY EXCLUSION 0% START
	ECONOMIC AND FINANCIAL STANDING 0% START
	MODERN SLAVERY - MODERN SLAVERY ACT 2015: REQUIREMENTS UNDER 0% START
	HOME SUPPORT FOR CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES AND 0% START
	HEALTH AND SAFETY 0% START
	OTHER 0% START
	FOOD HYGIENE SYSTEM RATING 0% START
	DECLARATION 0% START
	BACK
Eirmingham City Council © Convest Percenter Data AL Roms RESERVED	

Figure 3.1.10 Application Overview – Provider Application

# Step 6 – Provider Application

Step 6 is the Provider Application section which is similar to the Owner Application (Figure 3.1.10). All sections in this stage of the application must be completed. Some sections will only appear for specific contracts. Just like before, you will be able to save and return to this section at a later stage.

As an example, the following section will walk through the 'Grounds for Mandatory Exclusion Regulation (3)' section:

STEP 6: PROVIDER APPLICATION
GROUNDS FOR MANDATORY EXCLUSION REGULATION 57 (3)
Please answer the questions below. Questions marked with * are mandatory.
1. Has it been established, for your organisation by a judicial or administrative decision having final and binding effect in accordance with the legal provisions of any part of the United Kingdom or the legal provisions of the country in which the organisation is established (if outside the UK), that the organisation is in breach of obligations related to the payment of tax or social security contributions? •
2. If you have answered Yes, please provide further details. Please also confirm you have paid, or have entered into a binding arrangement with a view to paying, the outstanding sum including where applicable any accrued interest and/or fines.
BACK SAVE

As you can see, just like the owner application question section walk through, earlier in this guidance document, there are two questions. However, this time no upload fields are present. There is a yes/no question and text field question. Only the yes/no question is required to be answered as it is mandatory (shown by the red asterisk). If stuck/unsure, users can click on the information icon next to these questions to see guidance provided directly by Birmingham City Council. For example, if the user is unsure what to answer for question 1; they can click the information icon highlighted below

#### which will cause a popup to appear with some guidance:

1. Has it been established, for your organisation by a judicial or administrative decision having final and binding effect in accordance with the legal provisions of any part of the United Kingdom or the legal provisions of the country in which the organisation is established (if outside the UK), that the organisation is in breach of obligations related to the payment of tax or social security contributions?

The detailed grounds for mandatory
exclusion of an organisation are set out
on this web page:
https://www.gov.uk/government/upload
s/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/
551130/List_of_Mandatory_and_Discreti
onary_Exclusions.pdf which should be
referred to before completing these
questions.

As you can see, this guidance also has a link which you can follow for more information.

Once all the required questions have been answered, just as before, you will be able to click on the "Review" button to proceed to the next step.

Before submitting the application, you will have the ability to review the answers to all the questions in this stage of the process. Each tab in the window represents a different section of the application, and if there are any errors, you will have the ability to make changes. Once you have completed the review, you may click on the 'Continue' button to proceed to the final stage (see Figure 3.1.11).

uestionnaires Preview									
Grounds for Mandatory	Grounds for Mandatory	Grounds for Discretion	Economic and Financial	Modern Slavery - Mode	Areas to deliver care in	Health and Safety	OTHER	Payment Information	DECLARATION
			Grounds fo	r Mandatory Exclusi	on (Regulation 57 (1	and (2) )			
	criminal organisation * within the past five years you	1, your organisation or any oth	er person who has powers of	representation, decision or co	ontrol in the organisation been	convicted anywhere in the wor	rld of any of the offence	s within the summary below and I	sted on the
2. If yes please prov Guide: Details should inc Edit Response		t grounds the conviction was f	for, the reason for conviction a	and the identity of the person	convicted. If this information	s available electronically, please	e provide the relevent li	nk	
3. Corruption *									
© Yes									
* No									
Edit Response									
4. If yes please prov									
Guide: Details should inc Edit Response	lude: date of conviction, wha	t grounds the conviction was t	for, the reason for conviction a	and the identity of the person	convicted. If this information	s available electronically, please	e provide the relevent li	nk	

Figure 3.1.11 Question Section Review – Provider Application

# Step 7 – Submitted Application

The final stage of the application is confirming you wish to submit the application for review by Birmingham City Council. If you are satisfied with all the information that you have inputted, and wish to complete your application, please click on the 'Submit' button (see figure 3.1.12). Once you submit your registration, your owner application will be sent to the Birmingham City Council Procurement team for approval.



Figure 3.1.12 Final Submission Box

Please note that the final submission may take between 1-2 minutes to completely submit all the information. If the submission is successful, you will be presented with a dialog box stating that submission is successful. You may click on the 'Close' button to close this dialog box (see Figure 3.1.13).

SUBMISSION SUCCESSFUL
You have successfully submitted your registration. Your application is now in review. We will notify you of the results through your account and email.
CLOSE

Figure 3.1.13 Submission Successful Dialog Box

# Amending your application after submission

When you have submitted your application, its status will be recorded as 'Awaiting Approval'.

If you find that you need to amend any information in your submitted application, you can open it, and make the required amendments, at any time until the Procurement Team start to review it (when the status will change to 'In Review', or the tender period ends.

# Finding and opening your submitted application

If you have applied for the contract using routes a) or b), (see Section 3 – Applying for a contract) you just need to log into your CareMatch Portal account to access your submitted application.

If you have applied for the contract using routes c) or d), (see Section 3 – Applying for a contract) you should log into the CareMatch Portal User account that was used to make the application and follow the steps in Section 8.4.

# **3.2 RAISING QUESTIONS ABOUT THE APPLICATION PROCESS**

If you have any questions about the Application Process or specific questions that aren't answered by hovering over the "i" icon next to the question to display the guidance notes, then questions can be raised with Birmingham City Council by clicking on the "Questions" button (see highlighted section in Figure 3.2.1).

n Dashboard	PROVIDER CONTRACTS
Questions	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 INFORMATION OWNER DETAILS OWNER APPLICATION PROVIDER CONTRACTS PROVIDER DETAILS PROVIDER SUBMITTED APPLICATION APPLICATION
	STEP 4: PROVIDER CONTRACTS Please select Specialisms from below
	Care Homes 2018
	BACK NEXT
City Council COPVRIGHT PENGOWER LTD 2018. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED	

Figure 3.2.1 Question button on Application dashboard

On the questions page, you will have the ability to ask a question and view previous questions asked by providers and answered by Birmingham City Council. To do this, simply click on the "New Question" button (see highlighted section in Figure 3.2.2).

n Detboard	My Questions Awaiting Response			NEW QUESTION
Questions		QUESTION		
		No Questions to Show		
		prev hext		
	Questions			
	QUESTION		RESPONSE	
	What is slavery		Please refer to the guidance published here; www.xxxx.com	
	What is the lower limit for employers liability insurance?		this is £5 million	
	Why are you asking for MRRA data?		sorry that is an error we are getting it fixed	
		prev 1 nast		

Figure 3.2.2 Questions Page

Once the dialog box has shown up on your screen, you will be able to enter your question and then click on the 'send' button to submit your question (see highlighted section in Figure 3.2.3).

Ask Question		
Please ask one question		
Contract:		
QUESTION		
	SEND	
	SEND	

Figure 3.2.3 Ask Question dialog box

You will then be able to see your question, in the section called "My Questions Awaiting Response", until it has been answered (see highlighted section in Figure 3.2.4).

				_
Dashboard	My Overtiens Assisting Decrements			NEW QUESTION
	My Questions Awaiting Response			
Questions		QUESTION		
		When will you approve my account?		
		prev 1 next		
	Questions			
	QUESTION		RESPONSE	
	What is slavery		Please refer to the guidance published here; www.xxxx.com	
	What is the lower limit for employers liability insurance?		this is £5 million	
	Why are you asking for MRRA data?		sorry that is an error we are getting it fixed	
		prev 1 next		
LTD 2018. /ED				

Figure 3.2.4 Questions Page

#### **3.3 PROCUREMENT CORRESPONDENCES**

Whilst reviewing your application, if the procurement staff at Birmingham City Council require you to provide additional details about a question response, or if you have uploaded an incorrect document, you may receive a correspondence asking you for the relevant information.

You will be able to view this correspondence in two different formats. The first will be through an email notification, and the second through a correspondence window within the system, as shown in Figure 3.3.1.

To receive correspondences in the form of email notifications, you will have to check that your email notifications are not disabled to ensure you do not miss out on important updates regarding your application. Please refer to Figure 4.5.2 in the My Account section for details on how to check this and ensure RECEIVE MESSAGE EMAIL NOTIFICATIONS" is set to YES.

Email notifications relating to an application will be sent to the user that submitted the application from the following email address; <u>system.notifications@carematchportal.com</u>. Please check your spam/junk email folders for emails from this address.



Figure 3.3.1 Correspondence Window

Figure 3.3.1 shows an example of a correspondence message that has been sent by the procurement team that can be accessed within the system. A provider can respond to the correspondence or ask a question by typing in the box at the bottom of the pop up shown in Figure 3.3.1 and pressing send (the paper aeroplane icon).

To access the correspondence window, review the Owner and Provider application sections to see if any are showing an unlocked padlock (see Figure 3.3.2). The number next to the padlock informs you how many questions in the section need reviewing. In this example, we can see that this correspondence relates to question 1 under the Company Questionnaire in step 3 of the registration process (see Figure 3.3.2 and 3.3.3).

STEP 3: OWNER APPLICATION		
n order to process and approve your registration, we need you to com The application has been broken down into sections, and you can see	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
		You have 1 unlocked question(s) under this section. An email(s) has also been
NSURANCE DOCUMENTS	100%	sent to your account. Please make sure
NSURANCE DOCUMENTS - NURSING HOMES	100%	questionnaire.
ENERAL COMPANY INFORMATION	100%	VIEW
ERSONS OF SIGNIFICANT CONTROL (PSC)	100%	VIEW

# Figure 3.3.2 – Unlocked Questions

When you navigate to the respective step of the questionnaire, you will see an unlocked padlock icon (see highlighted section of Figure 3.3.2). If you hover your mouse over this icon, you will be able to see that you have an unlocked question under this section. This unlocked question represents the question that the correspondence was sent under. Here you will be able to edit your answer for this one question by clicking on the "View" button next to the relevant questionnaire section.

STEP 3: OWNER APPLICATION	
INSURANCE DOCUMENTS	
Please answer the questions below. Questions marked with * are mandatory.	
1. Please confirm Employers Liability (including volunteers) Insurance - to be as a minimum in accordance with statutory legislation and upload your certificate here. *	
• Yes	
● No	
Files uploaded:	
Test.docx;	
Select	
Select files to upload (jpeg. jpg, .png, .doc, .docx, .pdf, .pub, .csv, .xlsx, .xls)	
File Required Expiry Date:	
29/09/2018	
Correspondence	الل
	8

Figure 3.3.3 – Unlocked questions

Figure 3.3.3 shows the unlocked question in this section. You can tell it is unlocked by looking at the icon in the bottom righthand corner, or that it is highlighted by a red border. If you click on the Correspondence hyperlink you will be able to see the Correspondence window as shown in Figure 3.3.1, here you will be able to respond.

Once you have edited your response you can click on the "Save" button located at the bottom of the page in order to submit your new question response. You will not have to re-submit your application at this point. Please refer to section 3.1 for more information on the registration process.

#### 3.4 LOG IN

Upon opening the CareMatch provider website, you will be presented with a welcome screen. Here, in the Provider Log-in fields you will be able to enter the Email and Password that were set at the Owner Registration stage of the application process, or added later for additional User Accounts (see Section 8.7 for how to create additional user accounts). Enter your Email and Password in these fields and click on the 'Log In' button (see the highlighted section in Figure 3.3.1 below).



© COPYRIGHT PENGOWER LTD 2018. All RIGHTS RESERVED Figure 3.4.1 The CareMatch Login/Registration Screen

#### 3.5 USER ACCOUNT LOCKED/PASSWORD FORGOTTEN

If you enter your password incorrectly more than four times, your User account will be locked. You should email <u>marketintelligence@birmingham.gov.uk</u> and ask for the account to be unlocked. Please include the email address for the User account.

If you have forgotten the password for your account, you will be able to receive a link to reset your password. To do this, simply click on the 'Forgot Password?' link on the Login/Registration Screen (see highlighted section in Figure 3.5.1).



© COPYRIGHT PENGOWER LTD 2018. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED Figure 3.5.1 The CareMatch Login/Registration Screen

Upon clicking this link, you will be presented to a screen where you will be able to enter your email and receive an email link to reset your password (see highlighted section of Figure 3.4.2).



Figure 3.5.2 Forgot Password Page

Upon entering your email and clicking on the "Reset Password" button, you will be presented with a dialog box saying instructions have been sent to your email address (see Figure 3.4.3).

Password Reset Link is sent to
your email. Success. You have been sent further instructions to your email address
CLOSE

Figure 3.5.3 Password Reset Link dialog box

Once you have clicked on the link sent to your email address, you will be sent to a custom link where you will be able to reset your password. After you have entered your new password, you will be able to click on the 'Submit...' button to reset your password (see Figure 3.4.4). Please ensure to use a password that has a minimum length of 8 or more characters, includes lowercase and uppercase alphabetic characters, numbers and symbols to ensure the security of your account.

Reset Password	
	Password Reset
	To reset your password, please enter the new password in the boxes below:
Password	
Confirm Password	
	<mark>∕ Submit</mark>

Figure 3.5.4 Password Reset Page

# 4 DASHBOARD

Once your application has been approved by Birmingham City Council you will be able to gain access to your dashboard. Here you will be able to access all the functionality you require as a user, such as viewing referrals, messages, service agreements and your providers. This section will breakdown the dashboard and identify what each section is responsible for.

Font size Theme	Dashboard		<b>3</b> Open Referrals	<b>O</b> Unread Messages	<b>2</b> Offers Submitted	<b>2</b> Service Agreements
n Dashboard	RECENT MESSAGES	View All	OPEN REFERRALS			View All
Messages			REF-449 , Nursing unde	er 65 Long Term - learning disabili	ty	?≣ <u>VIEW</u>
Referrals			REF-444 , Nursing unde	er 65 Long Term - learning disabili	ty	?≣ <u>VIEW</u>
Offers			REF-440 , Nursing unde	er 65 Long Term - learning disabili	ty	?≣ <u>VIEW</u>
Service Agreements	NO MESSAGES TO SHOW					
🥦 My Providers						
Registrations						

Figure 4.1.1 The Dashboard

# 4.1 STATUS BAR

The status bar on the dashboard represents new notifications or those awaiting a response that you should be aware of. These notifications consist of any open referrals, unread messages and service agreements awaiting acceptance. You will have the ability to click on any notification to be able to access it (see highlighted section in Figure 4.1.2).

Image: Messages          Referrate           Referrate           Referrate           REF-440, Nursing under 65 Long Term - kenning disability          Image: Differs          REF-440, Nursing under 65 Long Term - kenning disability	
Image: Constraint of Standing and the Stand	View All
Referral:	≡ <u>VIEW</u>
	≡ <u>VIEW</u>
	≡ <u>VIEW</u>
Service Agreements NO MESSAGES TO SHOW	
📡 My Providers	
Registrations	

Figure 4.1.2 The Dashboard – Status Bar

#### 4.2 RECENT MESSAGES

The highlighted section in Figure 4.2.1 shows the recent messages section. Here, if any messages are available to you, they will be visible here. In addition, if there are too many messages to view them all on the recent messages section, you may press the "View All" button to view all your messages.

Font size Theme	Dashboard		<b>3</b> Open Referrals	<b>O</b> Unread Messages	<b>2</b> Offers Submitted	<b>2</b> Service Agreements
n Dashboard	RECENT MESSAGES	View All	OPEN REFERRALS			View All
Messages		- 1	REF-449 , Nursing under	r 65 Long Term - learning disabi	ility	?≣ <u>VIEW</u>
Referrals		- 1	REF-444 , Nursing under	r 65 Long Term - learning disabi	lity	7≣ <u>VIEW</u>
		- 1	REF-440 , Nursing under	r 65 Long Term - learning disabi	ility	7≣ <u>VIEW</u>
Offers	_	- 1				
Service Agreements	NO MESSAGES TO SHOW	- 1				
🢓 My Providers		- 1				
Registrations						
		- 1				

Figure 4.2.1 The Dashboard – Recent Messages

#### 4.3 OPEN REFERRALS

The highlighted section in Figure 4.3.1 shows the open referrals section. Here, if any referrals are awaiting offers, they will be visible in this section. In addition, if there are too many open referrals to display them all on the screen, you may press the "View All" button to see all referrals awaiting offers (see Figure 4.3.1 - 1). To open a selected referral, you may press the "View" button to view more details on this referral (see Figure 4.3.1 - 2).

Font size Theme	Dashboard		<b>3</b> Open Referrals	<b>O</b> Unread Messages	<b>2</b> Offers Submitted	<b>2</b> Service Agreements
A Dashboard	RECENT MESSAGES	View All	OPEN REFERRALS			View All
🛃 Messages			REF-449 , Nursing under	r 65 Long Term - learning disabili	ty	/≡ <u>view</u>
Referrals			REF-444 , Nursing under	r 65 Long Term - learning disabili	ty	?≣ <u>VIEW</u>
Gifers			REF-440 , Nursing under	r 65 Long Term - learning disabilit	ty	?≣ <u>VIEW</u>
Service Agreements	NO MESSAGES TO SHOW					
💓 My Providers	NO MESSAGES TO SHOW					
Registrations						

Figure 4.3.1 The Dashboard – Open Referrals

# 4.4 SIDE BAR

The highlighted section in Figure 4.4.1 shows the sidebar. Here, you can access all the functionality available to you as a user. From this sidebar, you will have the ability to access your messages, referrals, offers, service agreements and your providers.

Font size Theme	Dashboard		<b>O</b> Open Referrals	<b>O</b> Unread Messages	<b>O</b> Offers Submitted	<b>1</b> Service Agreements
n Dashboard	RECENT MESSAGES	View All	OPEN REFERRALS			View All
🛃 Messages						
Referrals						
Offers						
Service Agreements	NO MESSAGES TO SHOW			≓≣ NO REFERRAL		
🢓 My Providers						
Registrations						

Figure 4.4.1 The Dashboard – Sidebar

We will cover all of these during the referral process except for 'My Providers'. This area is used to manage and view details regarding the providers you have registered with CareMatch. This includes viewing and editing the provider's details:

Provider Details Ivybank Care Home COCID Contract	1-2209814929		BACK
		Status	Approved
Primary Number	012162430060	Website	
Email Address		No. of Beds	
Address Line 1	73-75 Middleton Hall Road	County	West Midlands
Address Line 2		Region	West Midlands
Town/City	Birmingham	Postal Code	B30 1AG
		SAVE	

Figure 4.4.2 Provider Details

Viewing the contracts and service elements the provider has been registered to provide:

Contracts		
Contract	Service Element/s	
	Nursing under 65 Short Term - drug alcohol	
	Nursing under 65 Temporary - mental health	
	Residential 65 and over Short Term - mental health	
	Residential under 65 Short Term - eating disorder	
	Residential 65 and over Long Term - dementia	
	Nursing 65 and over Short Term - drug alcohol	
	Residential under 65 Long Term - dementia	
	Nursing under 65 Temporary - sensory impairment	
	Nursing under 65 Short Term - dementia	
	Residential 65 and over Temporary - sensory impairment	
	Nursing 65 and over Temporary - drug alcohol	
	Nursing 65 and over Long Term - sensory impairment	
	Residential under 65 Short Term - mental health	
	Nursing under 65 Short Term - autistic spectrum	
	Residential 65 and over Long Term - autistic spectrum	
	Residential 65 and over Short Term - learning disability	

Figure 4.4.3 Service Elements

and viewing / adding users and documents to that particular provider:

Documents				ADD DOC
NAME	ТҮРЕ	EXPIRES	CREATED	
42	Audit Account Information		13/09/2018	Q
asd	Safeguarding Policy		13/09/2018	Q
Users				ADD USER
FIRST NAME	SURNAME	EMAIL		ACTION
Tariq	Khan	zeeshan.chughtai@pengower.co.uk		Q

Figure 4.4.4 Viewing and Adding Users and Documents

Users and Documents management is discussed in more detail in Section 8.7 and 8.8

# 4.5 MY ACCOUNT

From the dashboard, you will have the ability to access your account details from the top right-hand side menu (see highlighted section in Figure 4.4.1). From this section you will also be able to log out of your account. To access your account details, you may click on the "My Details" button under the "My Account" section.

	<sup>⊗</sup> CAREMATCH			MY ACCOUNT -
Font size	Dashboard		3 0 2 Open Ruferrals Unvead Messages Others Submitted	MY DETAILS LOG OUT Service Agreements
n Dashboard	RECENT MESSAGES	View All	OPEN REFERRALS	View All
📓 Messages			REF-449, Nursing under 65 Long Term - learning disability	f≣ <u>view</u>
Referrals			REF-444 , Nursing under 65 Long Term - learning disability	f≣ <u>VIEW</u>
Offees			▲REF-440 , Nursing under 65 Long Term - learning disability	f≣ <u>VIEW</u>
Service Agreements     My Providers     Repittrations	NO MESSAGES TO SHOW			

Figure 4.4.1 The Dashboard – My Account

Figure 4.4.2 shows the user details section. Here all your saved information will be displayed. As well as this, you can also enable or disable referral email notifications and message email notifications (see Figure 4.4.2 -1 and 2). To edit any saved information, you may click on the edit button (see Figure 4.4.2-3) to access the fields and be able to edit the information. Please click on the "save" button once all changes have been completed.

User Details			
	RECEIVE REFERRAL EMAIL NOTIFICATIONS		RECEIVE MESSAGE EMAIL NOTIFICATIONS
Company Name:		Role:	Owner •
First Name:		Surname:	
Email:	zeeshan.chughtai@pengower.co.uk	Main Contact Number:	
Providers:	🗵 Ivybank Care Home		
Permissions:	<ul> <li>✓ Add Location/s?</li> <li>✓ Make Offer/Accept Service Agreement</li> <li>✓ Change Provider Details?</li> <li>✓ Manage Users?</li> </ul>		
	EDIT		

Figure 4.5.2 My Account – User Details

This view also shows you which providers you have been assigned to and also which permissions you have.

A description of the different types of permission are provided below:

- Add Providers/s? This permission gives the user the ability to add provider locations under the owner. Any new provider location will need to be added via the 'My Providers' tab discussed in the previous section of this document. Please see instruction in Section 8.2. This will trigger the application process, once completed this will be sent to Birmingham City Council for review.
- Make Offer/Accept Service Agreement This permission gives the user the permission to view/accept/decline referrals and view/accept service agreements.
- Change Provider Details? This permission gives the user the ability to change some of the details saved regarding the provider filled out during step 5 of the registration process. You can change the contact phone number, email address and website details. Information relating to the Providers CQC registration will not be editable (e.g. the Provider address). You will need to do this via the CQC website if this information needs editing. Editable details can also be changed from the 'My Providers' tab. Users who do not have this permission will not be able to edit the data or see the 'Save' button under the 'Provider Details' section.
- Manage Users? This permission gives the user the ability to add and edit users within the 'My Providers' tab under the 'Users' section/table. This can be from changing passwords, emails, numbers and also assigning permissions.

Section 8.7 covers Managing User Accounts (including adding users).

# **5 REFERRALS**

This section will go through the referrals section of the CareMatch system.

#### **5.1 WHAT ARE REFERRALS?**

Referrals contain details of a service user's social care needs and the service they require. Each referral will specify the care requirements, health conditions, service description (e.g. call times for home support referrals) and other information which will help you decide if you wish to make an offer and if so, the details of your offer.

#### **5.2 HOW DO I ACCESS MY REFERRALS**

To access your referrals, from any page, you may click on the "Referrals" button found on the sidebar (see highlighted area Figure 5.2.1). Once open, you should then see a page with a table containing all your current referrals on the system. Here, you will be able to see the referral reference, provider(s), contract, service type, status and date.

A A A A	Search						Filter:	ALL
	REFERENCE 1	CITIZEN ID PROVIDER(S)	CONTRACT	SERVICE ELEMENT	REFERRAL STATUS	DATE	OFFERS REQUIRED BY	ACTIONS
Dashboard	🛕 REF-440	(6013	Care Homes 2018	* DIRECT ALLOCATION * Nursing under 65 Long Term - learning disability	Active Search	10:58 13 September 2018	10:56 13 December 2018	Q ×
Messages	A REF-443	(6023	Care Homes 2018	Nursing under 65 Long Term - learning disability	No Offers Made	12:17 13 September 2018	13:39 13 September 2018	Q ×
Referrals.	A REF-444	(6023	Care Homes 2018	Nursing under 65 Long Term - learning disability	Active Search	13:23 13 September 2018	12:00 30 December 2018	Q ×
Offers	REF-446	(6023	Care Homes 2018	* DIRECT ALLOCATION * Nursing under 65 Long Term - learning disability	No Offers Made	13:43 13 September 2018	13:45 13 September 2018	Q ×
Service Agreements	🛕 REF-449	(6023	Care Homes 2018	Nursing under 65 Long Term - learning disability	Active Search	13:50 13 September 2018	12:00 30 December 2018	Q ×
My Providers	🛕 REF-479	(0013	Supported Living 2018	Learning Dis, - Ext Supported Living	No Offers Made	09:33 21 September 2018	09:55 21 September 2018	Q ×
Registrations	REF-480	(6013	Care Homes 2018	Residential under 65 Long Term - mental health	Review of Shortlist	09:51 21 September 2018	10:00 21 September 2018	Q ×
negistrations	REF-481	132	Care Homes 2018	Nursing 65 and over Long Term - 65 years and over	No Offers Made	11:39 25 September 2018	12:54 26 September 2018	Q ×
	🛕 REF-483	(6013	Care Homes 2018	Residential under 65 Long Term - Mental Health Act	Cancelled	15:04 24 September 2018	15:20 24 September 2018	Q ×
	REF-494	(6013	Care Homes 2018	Nursing 65 and over Long Term - 65 years and over	No Offers Made	10:14 26 September 2018	12:00 28 September 2018	Q ×
				prev 1 2 next				

To access a specific referral, you will be able to click on the magnifying glass icon on a referral entry to show more details (see arrow in Figure 5.2.1)

#### **5.3 I HAVE A QUESTION ABOUT A REFERRAL**

If you have a question about a referral, you may go on the referral page (for more information on how to do this, please see Section 5.2). Once the referral page is open, you may click on the "Questions" button to open the questions page (see highlighted section of Figure 5.3.1).

REF-39 FROM: Aljon Alacapa SERVICES: * DIRECT ALLOCA POSTCODE: B9 4	TION * Home support - children's brain injury	DATE POSTED: 18/07/2018 16:12:00 RESPONSES REQUIRED BY: 26/07/2018 23:12:00 END DATE:	RESPOND ▼ QUESTIONS VIEW HISTORY
CARE REQUIREMENTS:			VIEW HISTORY
<ul> <li>Assisting service user w</li> <li>Assist with hand and na</li> <li>Carer can use Sign Alor</li> <li>Carer can provide hair of</li> <li>Carer can provide hair of</li> <li>Carer can provide hair of</li> <li>Carer swith experience/</li> <li>Able to assist service us</li> <li>Assist with household d</li> </ul>	g	e Offer Question section below	
Day	Start Time	End Time	Number of Carers
		No Service Calls to Show	

Figure 5.3.1 Referrals Page

Once the "Questions" button has been clicked, you will be presented with a questions page. Here you will be able to see your questions awaiting response as well as see the responses to those questions. To ask a new question, you may click on the "New Question" button on the top right-hand side of the page (see highlighted section of Figure 5.3.2).

My Questions Awaiting Response		NEW QUESTION	
	QUEST	ION	
	Does this client requir	e help with mobility?	
	prev 1	next	
Questions			
QUESTION		RESPONSE	
Does this client require help with cooking?		Yes, this client requires help with both cooking and cleaning.	
	prev 1	next	
	CLC	SE CONTRACTOR OF CONTRACTOR	

Figure 5.3.2 Questions Page

#### **5.4 VIEW HISTORY**

On the referrals page, you will be able to see the history of a referral. To do this, you may click on the "View History" button found on the referrals page (see highlighted section of Figure 5.4.1).

eferrals			BACK
POSTCODE: B9 4 CARE REQUIREMENTS: • Carers with experience/trai • Assisting service user with • Assist with hand and nali C • Carer can use Sign Along • Carer can use Sign Along • Carer can provide hair care • Carer can provide prompt/ • Respite/short break • Carers with experience/trai • Able to assist service user • Assist with household duti		END DATE:	RESPOND  QUESTIONS VIEW HISTORY
SERVICE CALLS:			
Day	Start Time	End Time	Number of Carers
		No Service Calls to Show	
For Testing		prev next	

Figure 5.4.1 Referrals Page

Once you have clicked on the "View History" button, you will be presented with a dialog box, listing the entire history of the referral. You may click on the "Close" button to close this dialog box.

#### **5.5 EMERGENCY PLACEMENTS**

Whilst on CareMatch, you may notice a red warning icon next to a referral. If visible, this icon means that the corresponding referral is an emergency placement and may require an immediate response (See highlighted section on Figure 5.5.1).

A A A A	Referrals Search							Filteri	ALL
	REFERENCE 14	CITIZEN ID	PROVIDER(S)	CONTRACT 14	SERVICE ELEMENT	REFERRAL	DATE	OFFERS REQUIRED BY	ACTIONS
n Dashboard	A REF-440	(60132518)	Provider ABC	Care Homes 2018	* DIRECT ALLOCATION * Nursing under 65 Long Term - learning disability	Active Search	10:58 13 September 2018	10:56 13 December 2018	Q × 🛊
Messages	A REF-443	(602		Care Homes 2018	Nursing under 65 Long Term - learning disability	No Offers Made	12:17 13 September 2018	13:39 13 September 2018	Q × Å
Peferrals	A REF-444	(602		Care Homes 2018	Nursing under 65 Long Term - learning disability	Active Search	13:23 13 September 2018	12:00 30 December 2018	Q×d
Offers	REF-446	(602		Care Homes 2018	* DIRECT ALLOCATION * Nursing under 65 Long Term - learning disability	No Offers Made	13:43 13 September 2018	13:45 13 September 2018	Q×¢
Service Agreements	A REF-449	(602		Care Homes 2018	Nursing under 65 Long Term - learning disability	Active Search	13:50 13 September 2018	12:00 30 December 2018	Q×¢
Wy Providers	A REF-479	(001		Supported Living 2018	Learning Dis Ext Supported Living	No Offers Made	09:33 21 September 2018	09:55 21 September 2018	Q×d
Registrations	REF-480	(60132518)	Provider ABC	Care Homes 2018	Residential under 65 Long Term - mental health	Review of Shortlist	09:51 21 September 2018	10:00 21 September 2018	Q×d
Megistrations	REF-481	132518	Provider ABC	Care Homes 2018	Nursing 65 and over Long Term - 65 years and over	No Offers Made	11:39 25 September 2018	12:54 26 September 2018	Q×¢
	A REF-483	(60132518)	Provider ABC	Care Homes 2018	Residential under 65 Long Term - Mental Health Act	Cancelled	15:04 24 September 2018	15:20 24 September 2018	Qxt
	REF-494	(60132518)	Provider ABC	Care Homes 2018	Nursing 65 and over Long Term - 65 years and over	No Offers Made	10:14 26 September 2018	12:00 28 September 2018	Q × 1

Figure 5.5.1 Referrals Page – Emergency Placements

# 6 OFFERS

This section will go through the offers section of the CareMatch system.

#### 6.1 HOW DO I RESPOND TO A REFERRAL?

To respond to a referral, start by opening the referral details. You can do this by clicking on the magnifying glass icon on the referrals page. (see highlighted section of Figure 6.1.1), or by clicking on the referral reference (REF-XXXXX).

A A A A A	Search							Filter	ALL
	REFERENCE 11	CITIZEN ID	PROVIDER(S)	CONTRACT	SERVICE ELEMENT	REFERRAL STATUS	DATE	OFFERS REQUIRED BY	ACTIONS
n Dashboard	A REF-440	(60132518)	Provider ABC	Care Homes 2018	* DIRECT ALLOCATION * Nursing under 65 Long Term - learning disability	Active Search	10:58 13 September 2018	10:56 13 December 2018	Q×
D Messages	A REF-443	(60239480)	Provider ABC	Care Homes 2018	Nursing under 65 Long Term - learning disability	No Offers Made	12:17 13 September 2018	13:39 13 September 2018	Q ×
Neferrals	A REF-444	(60239480)	Provider ABC	Care Homes 2018	Nursing under 65 Long Term - learning disability	Active Search	13:23 13 September 2018	12:00 30 December 2018	QX
Offers	REF-446	(60239480)	Provider ABC	Care Homes 2018	* DIRECT ALLOCATION * Nursing under 65 Long Term - learning disability	No Offers Made	13:43 13 September 2018	13:45 13 September 2018	Qx
Service Agreements	A REF-449	(60239480)	Provider ABC	Care Homes 2018	Nursing under 65 Long Term - learning disability	Active Search	13:50 13 September 2018	12:00 30 December 2018	Q ×
🖉 My Providers	🛕 REF-479	(00132518)	Provider ABC	Supported Living 2018	Learning Dis Ext Supported Living	No Offers Made	09:33 21 September 2018	09:55 21 September 2018	Q×
Registrations	REF-480	(60132518)	Provider ABC	Care Homes 2018	Residential under 65 Long Term - mental health	Review of Shortlist	09:51 21 September 2018	10:00 21 September 2018	Q ×
	REF-481	132518	Provider ABC	Care Homes 2018	Nursing 65 and over Long Term - 65 years and over	No Offers Made	11:39 25 September 2018	12:54 26 September 2018	Q X
	A REF-483	(60132518)	Provider ABC	Care Homes 2018	Residential under 65 Long Term - Mental Health Act	Cancelled	15:04 24 September 2018	15:20 24 September 2018	Q ×
	REF-494	(60132518)	Provider ABC	Care Homes 2018	Nursing 65 and over Long Term - 65 years and over	No Offers Made	10:14 26 September 2018	12:00 28 September 2018	Q ×

Figure 6.1.1 My Referrals Page

Once a referral has been opened, you will be able to review the referral details and respond by clicking on the "Respond" button on the top right-hand side (see highlighted section of Figure 6.1.2). From this section you will be able to either make an offer or decline, by clicking on the designated button. From this section, you will also be able to ask a question, or view the history of this referral by also clicking on the relevant buttons.

Font size Theme A A A A	Referrals	•
n Dashboard	REF-440 CONTRACT: Care Homes 2018 SERVICE TVPE: * DIRECT ALLOCATION SERVICE ELIMENT: Nursing under 65 Long Term - learning disability FROM: Zee Chuightat DATE POSTED: 1058 19 September 2018 DATE POSTED: 1058 19 September 2018	Make Offer
📝 Messages	OFFER DEADLINE: 10:56 13 December 2018 PROPOSED START DATE: 13/09/2018 END DATE: CARE REQUIREMENTS:	
🔜 Referrats	Carers with experience/training in caring for Citizen with Substance Misuse	
Offers	Sammar ved Saseout Plan (Copy/from CareFirst 6 Support Plan)	
Service Agreements	Hoth: Conditions (Please list any heath conditions here)	
🐖 My Providers	FINANCIAL DETAILS: Vietily Price £1330	
Registrations	Payment Type Guide price Level of Assessed Need Band 5 - 73-637 hours of care Guide Price 1950 Total Number of Hours of Care 0 per Weel	
	Joint Fanding: Yes Funder Health Funder Name City Care BCC Percentage of 501 50 Jonnt Funding Payment Type Puid Direct to Provider	
	QUESTIONS: • Are you located outside of the Birmingham City Council bounday? • If you answered "Her" to being located outside of Birmingham, which Local Authority are you located in? (If you answered "No", please	se enter "N/A" for this question)
	What type of norm is being offered?     Are you able to meet the citizen's needs as described?     Do you have a vacancy?	

Figure 6.1.2 Specific Referral Page

#### 6.2 MAKING AN OFFER

Once you have clicked on the "Make Offer" button, you will then be presented with a dialog box. In this dialog box, you will be able to select which provider you are making an offer on behalf of (if you are assigned as a user to more than one provider within your organisation). Enter the information requested (in the example of a home support referral, the hourly rate is requested), and respond to a number of key questions regarding the referral or your offer.

Please note; offer forms will look different dependent on the type of service the referral is for. For example, you will see service calls for the supported living and home support contracts but not for Care Homes 2018. Once all this information has been completed, you will then be able to click on the "Submit" to submit the offer on this referral (see highlighted section of Figure 6.2.1).

	MAKE OFFER
Reference	REF-39
Provider	Provider A Provider B
Service Type	* DIRECT ALLOCATION * Home support - children's brain injury
Hourly Rate	
	Please confirm/answer the following:
Are you able to meet the	citizen's needs as described? *
O Yes O No	citizen's needs as described? * schedule of calls as described? *
Yes No Are you able to meet the Yes No	
Ves No	
Yes No Are you able to meet the Yes No	

Figure 6.2.1 Make Offer

If you try to make an offer after the offer deadline has passed you will get the following error message:

Referral is no Longer Active
Close

6.3 WITHDRAWING AN OFFER OR CHANGING A DECISION TO DECLINE A REFERRAL

If you have already made an offer on a referral, or if you have previously declined a referral, you can withdraw the offer or change the decision to decline, by going to the Offers page. At the Offers page, open the referral and click 'Withdraw' (Figure 6.3.1)

REF-339		RESPOND -
CONTRACT: Care Homes 2018	SERVICE TYPE: * DIRECT ALLOCATION * RESIDENT TEMP CLIENT	
SERVICE ELEMENT: Residential under 65 Temporary - mental health		Withdraw <sub>VS</sub>
FROM: Graeme Grace	DATE POSTED: 11:41 4 September 2018	Decline DRY
DATE POSTED: 11:41 4 September 2018	OFFER DEADLINE: 13:30 5 September 2018	Decime DRY
PROPOSED START DATE: 04/09/2018	END DATE: 25 September 2018	
CARE REQUIREMENTS:		
Carers with experience/training in caring for Citizen with Palliative care     Carers with experience/training in caring for Citizen with Dementia     Carers with experience/training in caring for Citizen with Autism		
Summary of Support Plan		
(Copy from CareFirst 6 Support Plan)		
Health Conditions		
(Please list any health conditions here)		
FINANCIAL DETAILS: Weekly Price £1150 Payment Type Guide price Level of Assessed Need Band 4 - 58-72 hours of care Guide Price 1150 Total Number of Hours of Care 0 per Week QUESTIONS:		
<ul> <li>Are you located outside of the Birmingham City Council boundary?</li> <li>If you answered "Yes" to being located outside of Birmingham, which Local Au</li> <li>What type of room is being offered?</li> <li>Are you able to meet the citizen's needs as described?</li> <li>Do you have a vacancy?</li> </ul>	uthority are you located in? (if you answered "No", please enter "N/A" for this question)	

Figure 6.3.1

Clicking this withdraw button will generate a popup message asking the user to confirm whether they want to withdraw the offer or not and which provider they would like to withdraw it for. This is shown below (Figure 6.3.2)



Clicking "Withdraw" will remove your offer (or change a previous decision to decline the referral). If needed, you can resubmit a new offer by repeating the instructions in section 6.2 of this guidance document. You may not see the referral in the Open Referrals list on the homepage if 5 new referrals were sent to your provider. However, you will always see the referral within the 'Referrals' tab on the side bar.

#### 6.4 HOW DO I VIEW MY OFFERS?

To access all of your offers, from any page, you may click on the "Offers" button found on the sidebar (see Figure 6.4.1). Alternatively, you can click the 'Offers Submitted' number on the quick status bar

discussed in section 4.1 of this report to see offers submitted but not yet handled. Once open, you should then see a page with a table referring to all your offers on the system. To view a specific offer details, you may click on the respective magnifying glass relating to that offer to open the referral/offer details page (see Figure 6.4.1 - 2).

Search					Filter: A	LL	۲
	PROVIDER(S)	CONTRACT	SERVICE TYPE	TI STATUS	DATE	OFFERS REQUIRED BY	ACTIONS
A REF-334		Care Homes 2018	Residential under 65 Long Term - sensory impairment	Offer Made	10:32 4 September 2018	14:10 4 September 2018	Q × ☆
A REF-338		Care Homes 2018	Residential under 65 Short Term - physical disability	Offer Made	11:37 4 September 2018	14:10 4 September 2018	Q × ☆
REF-339		Care Homes 2018	Residential under 65 Temporary - mental health	Offer Made	11:41 4 September 2018	13:30 5 September 2018	Q×☆
REF-372		Care Homes 2018	Residential under 65 Long Term - mental health	Offer Made	10:33 6 September 2018	11:00 6 September 2018	Q×☆

Figure 6.4.1 Offers Page

Offers shown on this page will have different status which correspond to the status of the referral. For example, if you have just made an offer and the Birmingham City Council have yet to shortlist the providers; the status shown will be 'Offer Made'. Another example is that if the referral is being shortlisted; the status shown here will be 'Review of Shortlist'.

Once open, you will be able to see all the details relating to the referral and the offer you made. At this page, you can also ask a question (section 5.3), withdraw from the offer (section 6.3) and view the history for this referral (section 5.4), see highlighted section on Figure 6.4.2.

eferrals			
REF-35			
			RESPOND -
FROM: Carl Washington	DATE POSTED: 18/07/2018 09:38:00		QUESTIONS
SERVICES: Home support - adults Dementia	RESPONSES REQUIRED BY: 28/07/2018 15:55:00	2	QUESTIONS
POSTCODE: B13 9	END DATE:		VIEW HISTORY
CARE REQUIREMENTS:			
<ul> <li>Provide assistance of hoist to transfer and needs total assistance to weight-bear</li> </ul>			L
<ul> <li>Support for doubly incontinent</li> </ul>			
<ul> <li>Carers with experience/training in caring for Citizen with Working age dementia</li> </ul>			
<ul> <li>Carers experience/training in emptying catheter</li> </ul>			
<ul> <li>Provide assistance of 1 to 1 transfer</li> </ul>			
<ul> <li>Support as has high risk of falling</li> </ul>			
<ul> <li>Assist with toileting</li> </ul>			
<ul> <li>Assist with strip wash</li> </ul>			
<ul> <li>Carers experience/training in administering oxygen</li> </ul>			
<ul> <li>Access to Local Education Provisions</li> </ul>			
<ul> <li>Assisting service user with incontinence care</li> </ul>			
<ul> <li>Appropriate training in prompting for medication</li> </ul>			
Assist with managing mobility     Assist with dressing/undressing			
Wheelchair user			
e ADHD			
<ul> <li>Assist with managing mobility</li> </ul>			
<ul> <li>Provide assistance of 1 to 1 and/or equipment to bath or shower</li> </ul>			
<ul> <li>Assist with shopping</li> </ul>			
<ul> <li>Assist with managing mobility</li> </ul>			
<ul> <li>Assisting service user with personal care</li> </ul>			
Diabetic Diet			
SERVICE CALLS:			
Day	Start Time	End Time	Number of Carers
Monday	09:00	10:00	1
Monday	13:00	14:00	1
Monday	20:00	21:00	1
Tuesday	09:00	10:00	1
Tuesday	13:00	14:00	1

Figure 6.4.2 Offer Details Page

# 7 SERVICE AGREEMENTS

This section will go through the service agreement section of the CareMatch system

#### 7.1 WHAT ARE SERVICE AGREEMENTS?

A service agreement is the call off to the contract the provider has successfully applied for (following the application process in section 3) in relation to an individual package of care described in the referral for which an offer has been successful.

# 7.2 HOW DO I ACCESS MY SERVICE AGREEMENTS?

To access your service agreements, from any page, you may click on the "Service Agreements" button found on the sidebar (see highlighted area on Figure 7.2.1). Once open, you should then see a page with a table referring to all your service agreements on the system. Here, you will be able to see the referral ID, provider name, service type, status and date/time of the service agreement. If you have any service agreements, you will be able to view the details of this agreement by clicking on the respective magnifying glass relating to that service agreement, to open the service agreement details.

Font size Theme	Service Agreements					Filter ALL 🔻
	REFERRAL	PROVIDER NAME	SERVICE TYPE	STATUS	DATE/TIME	11 ACTIONS 11
n Dashboard	REF-441 - SUP-88		HOME SUPPORT CLIENT	Complete	11:09 13 September 2018	Q× ☆
	REF-453 - SUP-93		HOME SUPPORT CLIENT	Awaiting My Acceptance	15:52 13 September 2018	Q × ☆
Messages	REF-458 - SUP-98		HOME SUPPORT CLIENT	Awaiting My Acceptance	10:34 14 September 2018	Q × ☆
Referrals	REF-459 - SUP-107		HOME SUPPORT CLIENT	Awaiting Approval by BCC	15:26 20 September 2018	Q X ☆
	REF-521 - SUP-126		HOME SUPPORT CLIENT	Complete	16:44 9 October 2018	Q × ☆
Offers			prev 1	next		
Service Agreements						
🦉 My Providers						
Registrations						

Figure 7.2.1 Service Agreements Page

# 7.3 HOW DO I ACCEPT A SERVICE AGREEMENT?

When a service agreement is in the "Awaiting Acceptance by Provider" stage (visible from the 'Status' field on the Service agreement page), you will have the ability to accept a service agreement. You can accept your service agreement, by opening the relevant service agreement (for more information on how to do this, please see Section 7.2), then clicking on the accept button located on the top right-hand section of the page (see highlighted section on Figure 7.3.1).
ervice Agreement Deta	1115	_
REF-237 - RER-311 - SUP-52		-
FBNR64		Accept
PROVIDER: A	OWNER: Care First	Decline
CITIZEN NUMBER: 1111	CONTRACT: Care Homes 2018	
SERVICE TYPE: NURSING L/T CLIENT	SERVICE ELEMENT: NURS L/T CL LEARN DI	
STATUS: Awaiting Acceptance by Provider	FROM: Hamzah Tahir	
	DATE APPROVED: 23 August 2018	
DATE POSTED: 23 August 2018	START DATE: 23 August 2018	
END DATE: 23 November 2018	WEEKLY PRICE: £1400	
RATE TYPE: Weekly	PAYMENT TYPE: Guide price	
SCORE: 50		
OTHER INFORMATION:		
Summary of Support Plan		
Health Needs		
Health Conditions		
Health Condition 1		

Figure 7.3.1 Service Agreement Details Page

# 7.4 HOW DO I PRINT MY SERVICE AGREEMENTS?

To print a service agreement, open an existing service agreement from the service agreement page (for more information on how to do this, please see section 7.2). Once you have opened the service agreement, you will see all the details of this agreement on your screen. To print this, simply click on the top right-hand button called "Print" (see highlighted section on Figure 7.4.1).

Refers         Star	Dashboard	Service Agreeme	nt Details			B/
Metrada     StructEssivene support - 63 yauss and our genoted and yout     StructEssivene yout       Offers     Dy     Struct Time     Number of Hours     Number of Acurs       Medrady     0000     0000     0000     0000     0000     0000       Medrady     1000     1100     0.5     1       Medrady     1000     1200     0.5     1       Medrady     1200     1210     0.5     1       Medrady     1200     1210     0.5     1       Wedresday     1200     1230     0.5     1       Wedresday     1200     1230     0.5     1       Wedresday     1300     1230     0.5     1       Wedresday     1300     1230     0.5     1       Wedresday     1000     1300     0.5     1       Wedresday     1000     1300     0.5     1       Wedresday     1000     <	Messages	REF-48 - SUP-15				
Monday         0900         0930         0.5         2           Monday         1200         1320         0.5         1           Monday         1700         1730         0.5         1           Monday         1700         1730         0.5         1           Monday         0900         0930         0.5         1           Monday         1700         1730         0.5         1           Teeday         0900         0930         0.5         1           Teeday         1700         1730         0.5         1           Teeday         1700         1730         0.5         1           Wednesday         0900         0930         0.5         1           Wednesday         1200         1300         0.5         1           Wednesday         0900         0930         0.5         1           Wednesday         1200         1300         0.5         1           Wednesday         1200         1300         0.5         1           Wednesday         1200         1300         0.5         1           Wednesday         1000         1300         0.5         1	Referrals	SERVICES:Home support - 65 years START DATE:29 July 2018	and over	STATUS:Accept	ed	
Monday         0900         0930         0.5         2           Service Agreements         Monday         1730         1730         0.5         1           Monday         1730         1730         0.5         1         1           Monday         1730         1730         0.5         1         1           Monday         02100         0210         0.5         1         1           Tuesday         0900         0930         0.5         1         1           Welneday         1700         1730         0.5         1         1           Weeneday         1700         1730         0.5         1         1           Weeneday         0900         0930         0.5         1         1           Weeneday         0900         0930         0.5         1 <th>Offers</th> <th>Day</th> <th>Start Time</th> <th>End Time</th> <th>Number of Hours</th> <th>Number of Carers</th>	Offers	Day	Start Time	End Time	Number of Hours	Number of Carers
Monday         1700         1730         0.5         1           Monday         2100         2130         0.5         1           Tuesday         0200         0230         0.5         1           Tuesday         1200         1320         0.5         1           Tuesday         1200         1320         0.5         1           Worders         Tuesday         1200         1320         0.5         1           Wednesday         1200         1230         0.5         1         1           Wednesday         0200         0930         0.5         1         1           Wednesday         0200         0930         0.5         1         1           Wednesday         0200         0930         0.5         1         1           Wednesday         1200         1320         0.5         1         1           Wednesday         1200         1320         0.5         1		Monday	09:00	09:30	0.5	2
Monday         2100         2130         0.5         1           ty Providers         Tuesday         0.900         0.930         0.5         2           Tuesday         1200         1330         0.5         1         1           Workders         Tuesday         1200         1330         0.5         1         1           Workders         Tuesday         1200         1330         0.5         1         1           Workders         1000         1330         0.5         1		Monday	13:00	13:30	0.5	1
Monday         2100         2130         0.5         1           Tuesday         0300         033         0.5         2         1           Tuesday         1300         1330         0.5         1         1           Wrooders         Tuesday         1300         1330         0.5         1         1	and an an annual second s	Monday	17:00	17:30	0.5	1
Tursday         1200         1320         0.5         1           Tursday         1200         1230         0.5         1           Tursday         2100         2130         0.5         1           Wedneddy         0900         0920         0.5         1           Wedneddy         1000         1230         0.5         1           Wedneddy         1000         1230         0.5         1	rvice Agreements	Monday	21:00	21:30	0.5	1
Intercipty         1700         1730         0.5         1           Vedraiday         1000         12130         0.5         1           Wedraiday         0000         0930         0.5         2           Wedraiday         1200         12130         0.5         1           Wedraiday         1200         1230         0.5         1           Wedraiday         1200         12.3         next         1           Wedraiday         1200         12.3         next         1		Tuesday	09:00	09:30	0.5	2
Tuesday     2100     2130     0.5     1       Wedneddy     0600     0930     0.5     2       Wedneddy     1300     1330     0.5     1		Tuesday	13:00	13:30	0.5	1
Wednesday         0000         0930         0.5         2           Wednesday         13:00         13:30         0.5         1	Providers	Tuesday	17:00	17:30	0.5	1
Wednesday     13:00     13:30     0.5     1		Tuesday	21:00	21:30	0.5	1
Summary of Support Nam       Control & Support Nam       Contrel & Support Nam		Wednesday	09:00	09:30	0.5	2
Summary of Support Plan Universe & Doutry & Dame 20 hirs = 10 kmis Universe		Wednesday	13:00	13:30	0.5	1
- Mrs T requires support with personal care - with showening washing and		Clinicity & Schwart (2) 5 Stores X Clinicity Clinicity Stores X Clinicity Stores X Stores X Clinicity Stores X	dent and confident with using liste time. Note that on some an others. If necessary give: easily with washing, mater. Also support with			

Figure 7.4.1 Service Agreements Details Page

# 8 MY PROVIDERS AND USERS

This section will go through the 'My Providers' section of the CareMatch system and inform you of how you can add and manage users.

#### 8.1 HOW DO I VIEW MY PROVIDERS?

To access your providers, from any page, you may click on the "My Providers" button found on the sidebar (see Figure 8.1.1 - 1). Once open, you should then see a page with a table referring to all your current providers on the system. To view a specific provider's details, you may click on the respective magnifying glass relating to that provider, to open the provider details (see Figure 8.1.1 – 2).

Font size Theme	My Providers / Locations NEW PROVIDER				
n Dashboard	Search PROVIDER NAME	LOCATION	STATUS	ACTIONS	
🛃 Messages	Provider A	Cities Town	Approved	٩	
Referrals		prev 1 next			
Offers					
Service Agreements					
🦉 My Providers					
Registrations					

Figure 8.1.1 My Providers Page

Once the providers details have been opened, you will be able to edit some fields, add/view documents, and add users for your providers from this page.

Langstone Community Care CQC ID 1-466920710 Contract	ls				2
			Status	Approved	
Primary Numb	er 01384896900		Website		
Email Addre	55		No. of Beds		
Address Line	1		County		
Address Line	2		Region	West Midlands	
Town/Ci	ty Dudley		Postal Code	DY1 2NJ	
Contracts		[	SAVE 1		
Contracts Contract		Service Element/s	SAVE 1 No Users to Show prev next		
		Service Element/s	1 No Users to Show		ADD DO
	NAME	Service Element/s	1 No Users to Show		ADD DO CREATED
	NAME		No Users to Show		
	NAME	TYPE	No Users to Show		CREATED 2 ADD USE ACTION
Contract		түре	1 No Users to Show proc. most DXPNRS	đ	CREATED
Contract FIRST NAME	SURNA	түре	1 No Users to Show prov most DXPRES DAMES		CREATED 2 ADD USE ACTION
Contract FIRST NAME Largetone	<b>SURNAI</b> Test	TYPE	1 No Users to Show prov most DOPRES EMAIL Expont/Ppergover.co.	suk	CREATED 2 ADD USE ACTION Q <sub>3</sub>

Figure 8.1.2 My Providers Details Page

#### 8.2 HOW DO I ADD A NEW PROVIDER (CQC LOCATION) AND APPLY FOR A CONTRACT?

To add a new provider (CQC location), and then apply for a contract for it, you must first go to the 'My Providers' page from the sidebar (for more information on how to do this, please refer to section 8.1). On the page, you will be able to see a link called "New provider" (see highlighted section on Figure 8.2.1). Click on this link in order to open a new provider contract application page.

Font size Theme	My Providers / Locatio	ns				
n Dashboard	Search	ME î.	100071011	⊺↓ STATUS	ACTIONS	
	PROVIDER NA	VIE I+	LOCATION	1↓ STATUS Approved	t∔ ACTIONS Q	
Messages	Provider		Halesowen	Approved	Q	
Referrals			prev 1 next			
offers						
Service Agreements						
🦉 My Providers						
Registrations						

Figure 8.2.1 My Providers Page

Once you have clicked the link on the 'My Providers' page, you will be presented with an application page. This application page consists of 6 steps, similar to those found in the initial application process.

	2		-4-	5	6	
OWNER DETAILS	OWNER APPLICATION	PROVIDER CONTRACTS	PROVIDER DETAILS	PROVIDER APPLICAT	TION SUBMITTED APPLICAT	ION
STEP 1: OWNER DETAILS						
Welcome to CareMatch, the syste To register your interest in provic				details		
i i i i gini i j i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i			eenipiete the tenething			EDIT
Are you a Care Qual Commission registered provide	lity 🚺 🧿 Yes 📄 No er?					
CQC Provider ID Search 🛈			GO			
Name of Provider*: ①				CQC ID:		
Website:			Cont	act Number*:		
Address Line 1: 0				County:		
Address Line 2:				Region:		
Town/City:				Postal Code:		
		Please tick to confirm	these Provider details	are correct. 🛈		
			NEXT			

Figure 8.2.2 New Provider Registration Page

Figure 8.2.2 shows information relating to your company. Here you will have to confirm the information presented is correct by ticking the confirmation box. If correct, you can continue by clicking on the "Next" button. The rest of the application will remain similar to that found in the new provider section in section 3.1.

#### 8.3 HOW TO DO I APPLY FOR A NEW CONTRACT FOR ONE OF MY APPROVED PROVIDERS?

Figure 8.3.1 My Providers				
Font size Theme	My Providers / Locations NEW PROVIDER			
n Dashboard	PROVIDER NAME	LOCATION	STATUS	ACTIONS
Messages	Provider 1	Dudley	Approved	٩
	Provider 2	Halesowen	Approved	٩
Referrals		prev 1 next		
offers				
Service Agreements				
🦉 My Providers				
Registrations				

To apply for a new contract, please click on the magnifying glass icon for the provider you would like to apply for this contract for, from the 'My Providers' page (see highlighted section on Figure 8.3.1).

	Contract	Care Homes 2018 (CON-12) Home Support 2012 (CON-11)			
n Dashboard		Home Support 2018 - Specialism (CON-42) Supported Living 2018 (CON-14)			
			Status	Approved	
Messages	Primary Number	01384234510	Website		
Referrals	Email Address	support@pengower.co.uk	No. of Beds	11	
Offers	Address Line 1		County		
Service Agreements	Address Line 2		Region		
Service Agreements	Town/City		Postal Code		
🢓 My Providers					
Registrations			SAVE		
				ADD CONTRA	T
	Contracts			ADD CONTRA	
	Contract		Service Element/s Nursing 65 and over Long Term - at	utistic spectrum	
			Nursing 65 and over Short Term - a		
	Care Homes 2018 - Langstone	Road	Nursing 65 and over Temporary - 6 Nursing 65 and over Long Term - 6		
			Nursing 65 and over Short Term - 6 Nursing 65 and over Temporary - a		
		prev	1 2 3 4 next		

Figure 8.3.2 Provider Details Page

Once on the provider details page, if you scroll down you will be able to see an "Add Contract" button. By clicking on this button you will be able to register for a new contract.

0—	2			5	-6	
OWNER DETAILS	OWNER APPLICATION	PROVIDER CONTRACTS	PROVIDER DETAILS	PROVIDER APPLICATION S	UBMITTED APPLICATION	
STEP 1: OWNER DETAILS						
Welcome to CareMatch, the syster To register your interest in providi				ataile		
to register your interest in providi	ng care services to addits v	numin biriningnam, piease (	complete the following d	etails		EDIT
Are you a Care Qualit Commission registered provider	Y 🛛 🔿 Yes 📄 No ??					EDIT
CQC Provider ID Search 🛈			GO			
Name of Provider*: 0				CQC ID:		
Website:			Conta	ct Number*:		
Address Line 1: 0				County:		
Address Line 2:				Region:		
Town/City:			1	Postal Code:		
		Please tick to confirm	these Provider details ar	re correct. 0		
			NEXT			

Figure 8.3.3 Registering for a new Contract

Figure 8.3.3 shows information relating to your company. Here you will have to confirm the information presented is correct by ticking the Confirmation box. If correct, you can continue by clicking on the "Next" button.

You may find that you will have to fill in additional information into this application that you may have not had to enter during your initial registration, this is due to the nature of Contract Specific Questions, depending on the Contract you are applying for. The rest of the application will remain similar to that found in the new provider registration. For more information on the provider application, please refer to section 3.1.

#### 8.4 HOW DO I SAVE MY REGISTRATION (CONTRACT APPLICATION) TO COMPLETE LATER?

Once you have started a registration, whether it is for a new contract or a new provider, you can save it and come back later. To do this, ensure you have saved any question sections you have entered responses to in steps 2 or 5 by clicking the 'Save' button at the bottom of the page. Also, ensure you have clicked 'Save' if you edited your owner or provider details. **Make a note of your registration number which can be found next to the page heading on each registration step and starts with the prefix REG** (Figure 8.4.1)

Font size Theme	PROVIDER CONTRACTS - REG-107795
Dashboard	1 2 3 4 5 6 OWNER APPLICATION PROVIDER CONTRACTS PROVIDER DETAILS PROVIDER APPLICATION SUBMITTED APPLICATION
Questions	STEP 3: PROVIDER CONTRACTS
Messages	Please select Specialisms from below Supported Living 2023
Referrals	Home Support 2024
Offers	Quick Discharge Service 2024
Service Agreements	BACK NEXT
🣜 My Providers	
Registrations	

Figure 8.4.1

Next, logout of your account (My Account > Logout) or navigate away from the registration (e.g. to referrals section if a referral has been sent to you). Then, when you are ready to carry on with the registration, from the side navigation panel, click on the 'Registrations' tab.

Font size Theme	Dashboard		<b>O</b> Open Referrals	<b>O</b> Unread Messages	<b>O</b> Offers Submitted	<b>1</b> Service Agreements
n Dashboard	RECENT MESSAGES	View All	OPEN REFERRALS			View All
Messages						
Referrals						
Offers						
Service Agreements	NO MESSAGES TO SHOW			≓ NO REFERRAL		
🐱 My Providers						
Registrations						

This will take you to a list of all of your registrations including completed and approved registrations. From here, find your registration by looking in the Reference column for the REG number you made a note of earlier. You can see the type of the registration (Provider or Contract), the status, who it was registered by and more. You can also reorder the data by clicking on the arrows next to each column heading or the heading itself. For example, clicking the arrows next to 'Date/Time Created' will reorder the registrations from oldest to newest. Clicking on it again will reorder them from newest to oldest.

				Filter ALL		
PROVIDER NAME	11 <b>TYPE</b> 11	STATUS	REGISTERED BY	DATE/TIME CREATED	REFERENCE	Actio
	Contract	In-Registration		30 October 2018 14:20	REG-389	٩
	Contract	In-Registration		30 October 2018 12:17	REG-386	Q
	Contract	In-Registration		30 October 2018 12:15	REG-385	۹
	Contract	In-Registration		29 October 2018 15:09	REG-369	Q
	Contract	Awaiting Approval		29 October 2018 09:32	REG-363	Q
	Contract	In-Registration		29 October 2018 09:05	REG-362	Q
	Contract	In-Registration		29 October 2018 09:03	REG-361	٩
	Contract	In-Registration		28 October 2018 22:17	REG-356	Q
	Contract	In-Registration		28 October 2018 22:14	REG-355	٩
	Contract	In-Registration		28 October 2018 22:14	REG-354	Q

Once you have found your registration, click on the magnifying glass icon to navigate back into the registration.

Provider In-Registration Lisa Jones 19 October 2018 12:28 REG-241 Q	Provider In-Registration Lisa Jones 19 October 2018 12:28 REG-241 Q
---	---

From here, simply click the 'Continue Registration' button to resume with your registration from where you left off.



# 8.5 HOW DO I DELETE A REGISTRATION?

Providers also have the ability to delete a contract or provider registration which have not yet been submitted. Submitted registrations will already be awaiting approval or would have been approved/rejected by BCC and cannot be deleted. Deleted registrations will be removed from the system completely and cannot be undone. To delete a registration/application, navigate from the dashboard to the 'Registrations' tab from the left navigation panel:

Fort size Theme	Dashboard		<b>O</b> Open Referrals	<b>O</b> Unread Messages	<b>O</b> Offers Submitted	<b>1</b> Service Agreements
n Dashboard	RECENT MESSAGES	View All	OPEN REFERRALS			View All
Messages						
Referrals						
Offers						
Service Agreements	NO MESSAGES TO SHOW			≓≣ NO REFERRAL		
💓 My Providers						
Registrations						

From here, you will see your registrations with all the relevant information such as the provider name, type of registration, status, reference and more. Next to this information for each registration you will also see two icons; a magnifying glass icon which allows you to go into and open the registration as well as the 'cross/x' icon. This is the icon you will need to click to delete a registration.

				Filter ALL			
PROVIDER NAME	11 <b>TYPE</b> 11	STATUS 11	REGISTERED BY	DATE/TIME CREATED	REFERENCE	Actio	on
	Contract	In-Registration		28 October 2018 22:14	REG-355	٩	×
	Contract	In-Registration		29 October 2018 09:03	REG-361	۹	×
	Contract	In-Registration		29 October 2018 09:05	REG-362	۹	×
	Contract	In-Registration		29 October 2018 15:09	REG-369	۹	×
	Contract	In-Registration		30 October 2018 12:15	REG-385	٩	×
	Contract	In-Registration		30 October 2018 12:17	REG-386	Q	×
	Contract	In-Registration		30 October 2018 14:20	REG-389	Q	×

When clicked you will see the following message which will ask you to confirm whether you want to delete the registration or not:



Clicking 'No' will cancel the deletion. Clicking 'Yes' will delete the registration if it has not already been submitted (status is 'In-Registration'). The registration will then disappear from your list. For example, if we click the 'x' icon next to the second registration in the screenshot above with the reference 'REG-361' and then click 'Yes'; we can see that it has been removed:

Hosanna Social Care Services	Contract	In-Registration	Lisa Jones	28 October 2018 22:14	REG-355	۹	×
Hosanna Social Care Services	Contract	In-Registration	Lisa Jones	29 October 2018 15:09	REG-369	Q	×
Hosanna Social Care Services	Contract	In-Registration	Lisa Jones	30 October 2018 12:15	REG-385	Q	×

If the registration has already been submitted, meaning it has a status which isn't In-Registration', you will see an error message which informs you that "This application has been submitted and is currently awaiting approval from BCC. Submitted applications cannot be deleted".

#### 8.6 HOW DO I EDIT A PROVIDER?

To edit a provider, please click on the magnifying glass icon next to a provider from the 'My Providers' page (see highlighted section on Figure 8.6.1).

Font size Theme	My Providers / Locations NEW PROVIDER			
n Dashboard	PROVIDER NAME	LOCATION	TI STATUS	11 ACTIONS
Messages	Provider 1	Dudley	Approved	٩
	Provider 2	Halesowen	Approved	۹
Referrals		prev 1	next	
Offers				
Service Agreements				
🦉 My Providers				
Registrations				

Figure 8.6.1 My Providers Page

Once the Providers Details page has loaded, you will be able to edit fields that don't link back to your Care Quality Commission registration details. Once you have completed any changes, please ensure to click on the 'Save' button to ensure that your changes have been saved (see highlighted section on Figure 8.6.2).

A Dashboard	Provider Details					BACK
Messages	CQC ID 1-466920710 Contract			Status	Approved	
Referrals	Primary Number	01384896900		Website		
	Email Address			No. of Beds		
Offers						
	Address Line 1			County	West Midlands	
Service Agreements	Address Line 2			Region	West Midlands	
📜 My Providers	Town/City	Dudley		Postal Code		
	Contracts Contract	Sanda	e Element/s	SAVE		
	contract	Service		No Users to Show		
				prev next		ADD DOC
		NAME	ТҮРЕ	EXPIRES		CREATED
						ADD USER
	FIRST NAME	SURNAME		EMAIL		ACTION
	Langstone	Test		support@pengower.co.u	uk	٩
	John	Smith		JohnSmith@langstone.co		٩
	Aljon	Alacapa		aljon.alacapa@pengower.c		۹
Birmingham City Council	John	Jones		john.fernandez@pengower.	co.uk	۹

Figure 8.4.2 Provider Details Page

#### 8.7 MANAGING USER ACCOUNTS (INCLUDING ADDING NEW USERS)

When an Owner's (CQC Provider) account is first set up on CareMatch Portal, it will have the one User account set up as part of the application process. As soon as a first contract has been awarded, additional User accounts can be added, by following the steps below. It is recommended that each Owner account has at least two User accounts, to enable access to CareMatch Portal if there is a problem using a particular account or to cover for staff on leave.

If an Owner (CQC Provider) account has two or more Providers (CQC Locations) registered on CareMatch Portal, new User accounts that are added can be set to view activity for any or all of the Providers.

When making new contract applications for an existing Provider (CQC Location) registration, any of the User accounts that have been set to view that Provider's activity can make the application if they have the Add Providers/s? (by following the steps in Section 8.3). See section 4.5 for a description of the different user permissions.

Once a new contract application has been started, it must be continued and submitted with the same User account.

# ADDING A NEW USER ACCOUNT

New User Accounts can be added by any existing User Account that has the permission to Manage Users? See below for the permissions that a User account may have.

Permissions: Add Location/s? Make Offer/Accept Service Agreement Change Provider Details? Manage Users?

The permission 'Change provider details' allows the User to change the contact phone number,

contact email address, website details and number of beds (care homes).

Whilst on the Provider Details page, please click on the "Add User" button located on the lower righthand side of the page (see highlighted section on Figure 8.5.1).

	Duralida Datall					
n Dashboard	Provider Details	5				BACK
	CQC ID 1-466920710 Contract					
Messages	Contract			Status	Approved	
Referrals	Primary Number	01384896900		Website		
	Email Address			No. of Beds		
Offers						
	Address Line 1	34-74		County	West Midlands	
Service Agreements	Address Line 2				West Midlands	
My Providers	Town/City	Dudley		Postal Code	DY1 2NJ	
	Contract		Service Element/s	No Users to Show		
				No Users to Show		
						ADD DOC
		NAME	TYPE	EXPIRES		CREATED
						ADD USER
	FIRST NAME	SURNAME		EMAIL		ACTION
	Langstone	Test		support@pengower.co.	nik 😳	Q
	John	Smith		JohnSmith@langstone.co		Q
	Aljon	Alacapa		aljon.alacapa@pengower.c		٩
Birmingham City Council	John	Jones		john.fernandez@pengower		٩
© COPYRIGHT PENGOWER LTD 2018.						

Figure 8.7.1 Provider Details Page

Once you have clicked on the button you will be presented with a 'Add User' page. Here you will be able to enter all the user's details and assign them to one or more provider locations (see Figure 8.7.2 - 1). Once you have entered all the relevant details, please click on the "Add" button to ensure that this user is saved to the system (see Figure 8.7.2 - 2).

You can set the new User account to receive (Yes) or not receive (No) two different kind of notification emails. These are both set by default to not receive notifications (No)

User Details				
	RECEIVE REFERRAL EMAIL NOTIFICATIONS	YES NO	RECEIVE MESSAGE EMAIL NOTIFICATIONS	YES NO

Referral email notifications will alert you that a new referral has been received for one or more your providers, and you will then find that referral on your dashboard.

Message email notifications will alert you that a new message has arrived. You can access the message from the 'Message' tab on your dashboard (see Figure 8.7.1)

You can also set User permissions by choosing one or more of the permission options (see Figure 8.7.2)

Font size	Theme	Add User	REFERRAL EMAIL NOTIFICATIONS	YES NO	RECEIVE	MESSAGE EMAIL NOTIFICATIONS	YES NO
	_				Role:	Owner	v
n Dashboard		First Name:			Surname:		
Messages		Email Address:			Contact Number:		
Referrals		Password:			Confirm Password:		
Reterats		Providers:	<ul> <li>Provider 1</li> <li>Provider 2</li> <li>Provider 3</li> </ul>				
Service Agreements		Permissions:	Add Location/s?				
My Providers			Make Offer/Accept Service Ag Change Provider Details? Manage Users?	reement			
Registrations				BACK	ADD		
Birmingh City Cour	nam ncil						

Figure 8.7.2 Add User Page

When you have completed the fields on the 'Add User' page, click 'Add' to add the new User account

#### 8.8 HOW DO I ADD A DOCUMENT (INCLUDING RENEWING MY INSURANCE)?

Whilst on the Provider Details page, please click on the "Add Doc" button (see highlighted section on Figure 8.6.1). Please note that if your User account does not have permission to change Provider details, you will not see the 'Add Doc' button. You will need to ask another User in your organisation who does have this permission to carry out the task.

n Dashboard	Provid	er Details	;			BACK
Messages	CQC ID Contract	1-466920710		Status	Approved	
Referrals		Primary Number	01384896900	Website		
<b>Offers</b>		Email Address		No. of Beds		
Service Agreements		Address Line 1		County	West Midlands	
		Address Line 2		Region	West Midlands	
💓 My Providers		Town/City	Dudley	Postal Code		
	Contracts		Service Element/s	SAVE		
				No Users to Show		
	Documents		NAME	prev next	EXPIRES CREATED	ADD DOC
	D	CarePlan.doc	Care Plan Policy	Care Planning Policy	10/08/2018 10/08/2019	
	D	CarePlan.doc	Medication Policy	Medication Policy	04/05/2019 10/08/2019	8 <b>Q</b>
	Users					ADD USER
		FIRST NAME	SURNAME	EMAIL		ACTION
		Langstone 1111	Test 123	support@pengower.	co.uk	۹

Figure 8.8.1 Provider Details Page

You will then be presented with an 'Add Document' page. Here you can enter a name for the document, it's type and the expiry date for your document (if the document has an expiry date).

n Dashboard	Add Document
Messages	Decement Type         Audt Account Information         •           Name         Explay Date         dd/mm/yyyy
Referrals	
Ciffers	BACK ADD 3
Service Agreements	
🢓 My Providers	

Figure 8.8.2 Add Document Page

After entering the document Name, please select the correct 'Document Type' from the drop-down list.

# Uploading renewed insurance documents

If you have more than one Care Quality Commission (CQC) location contracted with Birmingham City Council (BCC) under the same CQC owner <u>and</u> your insurance policies cover <u>all</u> of the contracted locations, you only need to do the steps below for <u>one</u> of those locations.

If you have more than one CQC location contracted with BCC under the same CQC owner <u>but</u> you have <u>separate</u> insurance policies for the different locations, the steps below need to be done for <u>each</u> of those locations.

Enter the document Name, then select the 'Document Type' from the drop-down list.

#### You will need to ensure you select from the following document types;

- 'Employer Liability Insurance'
- 'Public Liability Insurance'
- For a care home with nursing, you will need to upload a third document and select the document type 'Professional Indemnity/Treatment Cover Insurance'.

# If you have one document that covers more than one of the insurance types above, please upload it for *each* of the insurance types it relates to.

**Ensure you input the correct insurance expiry date**, this will be used to send automatic notifications to you 30 days before the documents expiry that it requires updating. The system will then notify you 7 days prior and on the date of expiry. If new documentation is not updated by the expiry date your Area Commissioner will be alerted.

Please note that if your Public Liability insurance cover consists of a base policy providing £5 million cover and an excess policy raising this to £10 million, you should enter the expiry date of the policy that runs out first.

#### Checking your documents before uploading

Before uploading insurance documents, please check that each document includes your company/organisation details and the insurance policy details (including; insurance provider details, policy number, type(s) of insurance, limit of cover and expiry date).

Ensure the limit of cover is that required by your contract:

Employers Liability insurance – a minimum of £5 million Public Liability insurance – a minimum of £10 million Professional Indemnity, Treatment Cover, and Negligence – a minimum of £5 million.

To upload the document, you may click on the "Upload" button (see Figure 8.8.2 - 2). A new window should open, allowing you to explore your local directory in order to find the relevant file.

Once you have located the document on your computer, you may click on the file, and then on the "Open" button to upload the document (see Figure 8.8.3). Once the form has been completed, and all relevant documentation has been uploaded, you may click on the "Add" button to add it to the system (see Figure 8.8.2 – 3). You will then be taken back to the "My Providers" page, and you will be able to see your documents under the "Documents" heading.



Figure 8.8.3 Upload Document Window

# 9 GLOSSARY

Term	Definition
Application	The process a provider must complete to apply to join an open contract. The application will be reviewed by BCC and the provider will be informed of the outcome. If the application is approved, the provider will begin to receive referrals under that particular contract.
Documents	A document is a file which relates to a specific policy and contract. For example, this can be an insurance certificate that a provider must upload.
Question	A question is the term Care Match uses for queries asked by providers whilst completing an application or during the referral process. Questions can be asked prior to an application being submitted, or regarding an open referral.
Correspondence	Communication between BCC Procurement Team and the provider about a submitted application.
Dashboard	The dashboard refers to the home page on the provider view. It contains a summary of all the latest referrals and communications. You can also access service agreements, offers, provider details, documents and other records using the side navigation menu.
Owner	The term owner, as used in this document, is the equivalent of the Care Quality Commission's definition of "provider". Provider; an individual person, partnership or organisation registered with CQC to provide health and/or social care services to service users. A provider is responsible for one or more provider locations.
Provider/Provider location	The term provider, as used in this document, is the equivalent of the Care Quality Commission's definition of "location"; a location is a place in which, or from which, regulated activities are provided or managed. For example, the registered office from which home support packages are delivered or the address of a nursing or residential home.
Contract	The contract identifies the service type required by the citizen (for example, supported living or home support) in the procurement process. During the application process, providers will be able to select to join contracts that are open for applications and in line with their owner's CQC regulated activity
Service Type	Further information about the services required by the citizen under a specific contract, such as

	the length of the service need (long term, short term or temporary).
Specialism	A categorization of the citizen's needs; e.g. over 65, learning disability, mental health
Referral	Detail of a service user's social care needs and the service they require, which is sent to providers under a specific contract to review and determine if they can offer a service.
Notifications	Notifications relate to alerts and emails received by users of Care Match. They can relate to the outcome of an application, new referrals, service agreements and messages, or questions received or responded to. Users have the ability to change their settings in relation to notifications.
Offer	The positive response from a provider to a referral stating they have capacity and can meet the needs of the Citizen as described in the referral.
Service Agreement	A service agreement is the call off to the contract the provider has successfully applied for in relation to the individual package of care described in the referral for which their offer has been successful.